
Agenda, Regular Board Meeting          April 18, 2023 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
District Office: 202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, CA 93023 

JOIN BY COMPUTER: https://meet.goto.com/813513357 
DIAL-IN (US TOLL-FREE): 1 877 309 2073 
ACCESS CODE: 813-513-357 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-2114.  

(Govt. Code Section 94594.1 and 94594.2 (a)) 

April 18, 2023, at 6:00 pm. 
1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call

3. Approval of the minutes: March 21, 2023, Regular Meeting

4. Public comment for items not appearing on the agenda

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any item 
of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, provided that no 
action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 
authorized by subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2.    
Please Note:  If you have comments on a specific agenda item(s), please fill out a comment card 
or send a virtual “chat” note to the Board Secretary. The Board President will call on you for your 
comments at the appropriate time, either before or during the Board’s consideration of that item. 

Closed Session Agenda - Adjourn to Closed Session (Estimated 6:10 pm):  It is the intention of 
the Board of Directors to meet in Closed Session to consider the following items: 

5. Closed Session Items
a) The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters or litigation,

pursuant to attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code Section 54957,
54956.8, & 54956.9, and 54957.

• State Case: SBCK vs. SWRCB, San Francisco Superior Court, Case # CPF-14-513875

Regular Agenda (***Reconvene Regular Meeting, Estimated Time 6:30 pm***) 

Page 1 of 60

https://meet.goto.com/813513357


Agenda, Regular Board Meeting          April 18, 2023 

6. Financial matters

Approval of Payroll and Payables from March 16, 2023, to April 15, 2023, in the amount   of:

Payables – $  59,353.87 

Payroll –  $  46,255.11 

Total –           $105,608.98 

7. Board action and/or discussion

a) Approval of Coastal Instrumentation & Telemetry (CIT) quote to replace and upgrade the District
auto-dialer and software, not to exceed $20,000. (Martinez) – Attachments
Recommended Action: Approve CIT quote and not to exceed budget of $20,000.

b) Review and discussion of Draft Resolution 20230516: Stage 1 Conditions. (Martinez/Ward) –
Attachment
Recommended Action: Receive, discuss and provide direction to staff.

c) Review of Draft Financial Audit Reports for FY 2021-2022 . (Martinez/Ward) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Receive and provide staff with any questions/comments for the Auditor
prior to presentation of final audit report scheduled for May 16, 2023.

d) Cost of Living Adjustment for staff, an increase of 5%, based on Burea of Labor Statistics Los
Angeles area, effective July 1, 2023. (Etchart) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Approve 5% cost of living increase for staff, effective July 1, 2023.

e) Approval of Compensatory Time policy. (Martinez/Etchart) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Approval of Compensatory Time policy.

f) Approval of Temporary Part-time Utility Worker Helper position from June 1 – November 30,
2023, not to exceed $40,000. (Martinez/Etchart) – Attachments
Recommended Action: Approval of hiring a Temporary Part-time Utility Worker Helper position
from June 1 – Nov 30, 2023, not to exceed $40,000.

8. General Manager’s Report
The Board will receive an update from the General Manager on District operations and
maintenance. 

9. Board Secretary’s Report
The Board will receive an update from the Board Secretary on District administrative and
related matters. 

10. Board Committee Reports

• Executive & Personnel Committee

• Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency

Page 2 of 60



Agenda, Regular Board Meeting          April 18, 2023 

• Allocation, New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee

• Budget & Rate Committee

• Grants Committee

• Emergency Management Committee

• Treatment Plant Design Ad Hoc Committee

11. Old Business

• State Water update
• Matilija Dam removal update
• Collaboration on drought response measures.

12. Director Announcements/Reports

13. Adjournment: The next scheduled Regular Board meeting is May 16, 2023.

Page 3 of 60



Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 21, 2023 

Regular Meeting Meiners Oaks Water District 

March 21, 2023 202 W. El Roblar Drive 

6:00 pm Ojai, CA 93023-2211 

Minutes 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by the Board President, Mike Etchart, at 6:00 pm via
teleconference.

2. Roll Call

Present: Board President, Mike Etchart, Board Directors: James Kentosh, Christian
Oakland, Joe Pangea, and Christy Cooper. Staff Present: General Manager, Justin
Martinez, and Board Secretary, Summer Ward. Attorney Present: Stuart Nielson (via
videoconference).

Absent: None

3. Approval of the Minutes

Approval of February 21, 2023, Regular Board Meeting minutes.

Director Oakland made the motion to approve February 21, 2023, Regular meeting
minutes. Director Pangea seconded the motion.

No Public Comment.

Oakland/Pangea

(5) Ayes- M/S/C

4. Public Comments
• None

**The Board went into closed session at 6:03 pm** 

5. Closed Session: The Board of Directors held a closed session to discuss litigation,
pursuant to the attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code
Sections Ş54957 & 54956.8, 54956.9, and 54957.
• State case: SBCK vs. SWRCB, San Francisco Supreme Court, Case# CPF-14-513875

**The Board adjourned closed session at 6:16 pm - Due to connectivity issues open 
session resumed at 6:26 pm** 

Page 4 of 60



Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 21, 2023 

Attorney S. Nielson stated that the Board discussed pending litigation in a closed session, 
and no action was taken. 

6. Financial Matters

Approval of Payroll and Payables from February 16, 2023, to March 15, 2023, in the
amount of:

Payables:  $113,659.55 

Payroll:  $  43,147.98 

Total:  $156,807.53 

Director Cooper made the motion to the Payroll and Payables from February 16, 2023, to 
March 15, 2023. Director Kentosh seconded the motion. 

No Public Comment. 

Cooper/Kentosh 

(5) Ayes – M/S/C

7. Board Discussion/Actions

a. Approval of reducing Artesian Monthly Water Availability Charge from 64 dwelling
units ($2,304) to 4 dwelling units ($144). (Martinz/Ward)
Ms. Ward presented the recommendation from the New Meters & Expansion of
Services Committee to reduce the Artesian MWAC fee from 64 dwelling units to 4
dwelling units. Ms. Ward reviewed the account’s history, including the timing of the
meter installation, account creation, allocation, and subsequent adjustment. In addition,
Ms. Ward provided a summary of other similar accounts, including the only other
commercial assisted living account, which pays 1 MWAC per building. Directors
discussed the allocation history and weighed the fee structure options.

Director Kentosh made the motion to approve the annual allocation of 120 fixed units
and 1,555 base variable units and reduce the MWAC from 64 dwelling units to 4
dwelling units. Director Oakland seconded the motion.

No Public Comment.

Kentosh/Oakland

(5) Ayes – M/S/C

Page 5 of 60



Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 21, 2023 

8. General Manager's Report

Mr. Martinez reported that the Casitas Lake level is 61%, up 45 vertical ft since January 
1, 2023. Seasonal rainfall totals were unavailable due to technical issues: Matilija Dam 
60.71", M.O. Fire Station 39.18”, and Nordhoff Ridge 67.6". The GIS mapping of the 
District has been completed by staff, and work attaching detailed asset information to 
each mapped item has been delayed while staffing is low. Work continues on the 
Treatment Plant Design, and the Well Sighting Study from Curtis Hopkins has been 
received. Mr. Martinez will send a copy of the Well Siting Study to Directors for review 
and will invite Curtis Hopkins to a future board meeting to discuss the report and 
recommendations. The approved initial purchase of AMI smart meters has been 
ordered, estimated delivery 6-8 months. Mr. Martinez has had initial conversations with 
Ventura Energy regarding potential backup batteries for some facility sites, including the 
District Office.   The District has offered Jeffrey Groves the Water Utility Worker I/II 
position, with a planned start date of April 3. Mr. Martinez reported that Caltrans notified 
the District last Thursday afternoon that a section of Highway 33 near the Treatment 
Plant and Wells 1 & 2. Caltrans does not have an estimated timeline for repair, and the 
District mainline runs along that section of the road. Anticipating the road breaking down 
the hillside and potentially breaking the mainline, that section of the main was turned off, 
and the District turned the Casitas connection back on. Currently, Wells 4a & 7 cannot 
be turned on due to the proximity of the surface water from recent storms. As soon as 
the surface water is at least 150ft away from those well sites, the Casitas connection 
can be turned off and back on MOWD wells. Status updates have been posted on the 
District website and social media pages.  

No Public Comment. 

9. Board Secretary's Report

Ms. Ward presented the monthly Board Secretary report highlighting that the District 
received an update from Kennedy Communications that the final report will be 
submitted to the CA State agencies at the end of March; we should anticipate results in 
early April. Ms. Ward reminded the Directors to complete their bi-annual Ethics and 
Anti-Harassment training, to be completed by April 1. The County of Ventura annual 
Conflict of Interest Form 700 is due by April 1. No accounts were disconnected for non-
payment this past month. Ms. Ward noted that the work to migrate the phones and 
internet from AT&T to Mitec has begun. 

No Public Comment. 

10. Board Committee Reports
• Executive & Personnel Committee: Met and authorized a temporary GM salary

adjustment for one month and requested the GM work on an alternate payment method,
Comp policy. Mr. Martinez is working with the Labor Attorney to draft a policy.

• UVRGA: Met and discussed challenges with getting well-pumping data reports from well
owners.

Page 6 of 60



Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 21, 2023 

• Budget/Rate Committee: No report.
• Emergency Management Committee: Met and reviewed current plans and examples.

Ms. Ward will be reviewing and revising the pandemic response section, and Mr.
Martinez will be adding specific procedures for scenarios.

• Allocations, New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee: Met, discussed, and
approved four Will-Serve Letters and allocation adjustments.

• Grants: Met and submitted the pre-application to the SWRCB for construction of the
replacement treatment plant, which was authorized at the February Regular Board
meeting.

• Treatment Plant Design Ad Hoc Committee: No report.

11. Old Business
• State Water: No update.
• Matilija Dam Removal Update: No update.
• Collaboration on drought response measures: Ms. Ward shared that she has

communicated with the Casitas MWD and VRWD Assistant General Managers and has
a coordinated timeline for adjusting the upcoming drought stage.

12. Director Announcements/Reports
• Director Kentosh: No report.
• Director Oakland: No report.
• Director Pangea: No report.
• Director Cooper: No report.
• Director Etchart: No report.

13. Meeting Adjournment

The next meeting will be held on April 18, 2023. There being no further business to conduct
at this time, Board President Mike Etchart adjourned the meeting at 7:37 pm.

     ____________________________ _____________________________ 

     Board Secretary   Board President 

Page 7 of 60



Page 8 of 60



Page 9 of 60



Page 10 of 60



Page 11 of 60



Page 12 of 60



Page 13 of 60



$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Ja
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-1

9

Se
p-

19

N
ov

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

M
ar

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0

Se
p-

20

N
ov

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

M
ar

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
l-2

1

Se
p-

21

N
ov

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

Se
p-

22

N
ov

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

M
ar

-2
3

Am
ou

nt
 ($

)

MOWD Monthly Expenses Expenses

Capital

Total Expense

1/19 - Wells

12/19 - Gen & Panels

7/2020 Z-2 6" relocation

$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Ja
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-1

9

Se
p-

19

N
ov

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

M
ar

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0

Se
p-

20

N
ov

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

M
ar

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
l-2

1

Se
p-

21

N
ov

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

Se
p-

22

N
ov

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

M
ar

-2
3

Am
ou

nt
 ($

)

MOWD Income & Expenses Total Expense

Income

GSA, Tx Plant design, 
memberships

Page 14 of 60



202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

Scada & Auto-Dialer Upgrade 

Summary: 
Meiners Oaks Water District’s SCADA system needs a software upgrade, and the 25-
year-old Zetron eight-channel auto dialer requires replacement. Pete Zeppeiro, the 
owner of Coastal Instrumentation & Telemetry (CIT), has saved its oldest laptop from 
being able to log into and work on MOWD’s auto-dialer. As a result, the dialer is limited 
in sending site-specific alarms and the number of alarms it can send. Replacing the 
auto-dialer will allow the District to create multiple site-specific alarms. This will help 
troubleshoot in the field and allow better management of our water systems. 
Additionally, newer equipment will get our dialer away from a dial-up line to an internet-
based system. Maintenance and repairs by our tech support in the future will become 
user-friendly. Finally, programming and installing Win-911 software will allow the District 
to have up to 200 specific alarms.  

Fiscal Impact: $20,000 (System Maintenance Budget) 

Recommendation: 
The General Manager recommends that CIT update the District’s SCADA software and 
replace the outdated auto-dialer. The GM requests the Board of Directors approve this 
scope of work with a not to exceed a budget of $20,000. The District has adequate 
funds in the System Maintenance budget to cover this expense.  

Page 15 of 60

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


CIT 
Meiners Oaks Water District   03/21/2023 
202 W. El Roblar Dr 
Ojai, Ca 93023 
O: (805) 646-2114 

Project Scope & Quote 

The proposed system consists of upgrading and replacing the 25-year-old Zetron eight channel auto 
dialer, which is showing signs of failure, and has reached a point that replacement is warranted. Not only 
because of age, but also in need of a technology upgrade, as this dialer utilizes an older phone line. 
Nowadays, most companies are replacing their phone systems with cost effective internet-based systems 
which save money. Additionally, this auto-dialer will not work on this type of phone line and works best 
with internet-based systems. 

CIT Provides: 

Winn-911 software for one computer 

One year of support from Win-911 

Programing and installation of Win-911 software 

Programing new alarms, up to 200 different alarms and 2 to 3 days of programing on/off sight 

Not Provided by CIT: 

A working internet connection with 24/7 conductivity to the SCADA computer   

Yearly ongoing support fee for Win-911 paid to that company (not CIT), this price is about $900.00 per 
year 

Price for this project is $12,500.00, the upfront fee for parts is $ 7,500.00 which is required to purchase 
equipment/software. This will leave a balance of $ 5,000.00 at the completion of startup plus tax and 
shipping cost will need to be paid at this time. 

Upgrading of the SCADA software, if needed and the ongoing support is paid and up to date. It would 
take an estimated 2 to 2.5 days, not to exceed price of $3,000.00 

This price does not include shipping and taxes 

This price is valid for 30 days from date of proposal 

Thank you, 

Peter Zeppeiro 

Page 16 of 60



Resolution 20230516 

RESOLUTION DECLARING A STAGE 1 CONDITION FOR 
ALL MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT CUSTOMERS 

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2016 the Board of Directors of  the Meiners Oaks Water District adopted 
Resolution 20160517 declaring that a Stage 3 water supply condition did exist at Lake Casitas, and 

WHEREAS, on June 21, 2016 the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 062116 establishing a 
temporary drought surcharge of $1.00/unit applied to water use exceeding each customer’s 
allocation; and 

WHEREAS, on August 16, 2016 the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 20160816-1: Drought 
Contingency Plan; and 

WHEREAS, on February 18, 2020 the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 20200218: Allocation 
Program; and 

WHEREAS, on July 19, 2022 the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 20220719-1 increasing the 
drought surcharge to $5.00/unit for water use over customer’s allocation; and 

WHEREAS, as of April 2023, significant rainfall has occurred in the Ventura River Watershed in 
recent months, and Lake Casitas storage is approximately 70% of its full capacity of 237,975 Acre-
Feet, and 

WHEREAS, the 2023-2024 Water Supply Assessment produced by Casitas MWD’s General 
Manager predicts that Lake Casitas will remain above 50% of full capacity prior to the end of the 
2023-2024 fiscal year and potentially longer, and 

WHEREAS, the Casitas Water Efficiency and Allocation Program adopted on May 12, 2021 and 
revised on March 22, 2023 identifies greater than (50) percent of storage available in Lake Casitas as 
the possible Stage 1 condition and subject to voluntary water demand reduction measures to 
preserve the Lake Casitas water supply for drought conditions; and 

WHEREAS, while water supply conditions have improved in recent months, next winter’s hydrology is 
uncertain and ongoing customer efforts to use water efficiently and preserve water supplies remain 
important in the event of future dry conditions; and 

WHEREAS, Article X, Section 2 of the California Constitution declares that the general welfare 
requires that water resources be put to beneficial use, that waste or unreasonable use or 
unreasonable method of use of water be prevented and that conservation of water be fully exercised 
with a view to the reasonable and beneficial use thereof; and 

Page 17 of 60



WHEREAS, California Water Code, Section 375, authorizes a water supplier to adopt and enforce a 
comprehensive water conservation program to reduce water consumption and conserve water 
supplies; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Meiners Oaks Water District 
as follows: 

1) Meiners Oaks Water District hereby declares that a Stage 1 Condition exists within the service
area of the Meiners Oaks Water District; and

2) The Board of Directors hereby directs staff to take the following actions:

a) Effective upon adoption of this Resolution:
i. Continue the public information campaign within Meiners Oaks Water District that

reduced water use within allocated amounts is encouraged during Stage 1
conditions.

ii. Continue measures to inform and educate all water users within Meiners Oaks
Water District as to methods for reducing water use.

iii. Maintain the current level of public outreach in relation to a specific Stage 1
message.

b) Effective June 1, 2023, implement the following Stage 1 actions and measures:

i. Rescind Resolutions 20160517 and 062116 adopted for Stage 3 measures; and
ii. Increase the allocation of every customer by thirty (30) percent back to the baseline

Stage 1 allocation amount; and
iii. Discontinue the drought surcharge for water usage exceeding monthly allocations

for residential customers and annual allocations for all other customers; and

3) The Stage 1 Condition shall be presumed to continue unchanged unless and until a contrary
finding is made by the Board by resolution or ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby resolves as follows: 

Adopted this 16th day of May, 2023 by a majority vote of the members of the Board, as follows: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

_________________________ _________________________ 

Board Secretary Board President 
Summer Ward Michel Etchart 

Page 18 of 60



Page 19 of 60



Page 20 of 60



Page 21 of 60



Page 22 of 60



Page 23 of 60



Page 24 of 60



Page 25 of 60



Page 26 of 60



Page 27 of 60



Page 28 of 60



Page 29 of 60



Page 30 of 60



Page 31 of 60



Page 32 of 60



Page 33 of 60



Page 34 of 60



Page 35 of 60



Page 36 of 60



Page 37 of 60



Page 38 of 60



Page 39 of 60



Page 40 of 60



Page 41 of 60



Page 42 of 60



Page 43 of 60



Page 44 of 60



Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) FY 2023-2024 

Summary: 
Throughout past years the Board of Directors of Meiners Oaks Water District has 
determined Cost of Living increases for staff based on the Bureau of Labor Statistics 
Los Angeles/Riverside Consumer Price Index following the new fiscal year. In 2022, the 
CPI was 8%, and the District approved a staff COLA of 4%. To assist with budgeting for 
FY 23/24, the February 2023 Los Angeles area CPI is 5.1%. The increase, if approved, 
is applied to the salary table for each employee's job title. 

Fiscal Impact: 
The budgeted salaries for FY 22/23 were $600,000, including base salaries, standby, 
and overtime pay. Payroll taxes and retirement were on separate budget line items, 
$55,000 and $75,000, respectively. Due to variable monthly payroll amounts depending 
on overtime, standby time, and the number of days within the pay period, the amounts 
due for payroll taxes and retirement contributions vary. Historically, those percentages 
have been about 8% and 14% of salaries, respectively.  

Projections for FY 23/24 salaries, payroll taxes, and retirement contribution budgets, 
with a 5% COLA, based on projected annual salaries as of April 15, 2023 pay rates: 

FY22/23 Adjusted for 5% COLA 
Annual Salaries (w/OT) $551,457.00 $579,030.00 

Payroll Taxes (8%) $  41,717.00 $  46,322.00 
Retirement Contributions (14%) $  73,000.00 $  81,064.00 

Total $636,174.00 $706,416.00 

Total Fiscal Impact: $70,242.00 
If a 5% COLA increase is approved, the recommended salary budget items for FY 23/24 
will be salaries of $625,000, payroll taxes of $60,000, and retirement contributions of 
$90,000. 

Recommended Action: 
The Los Angeles area Consumer Price Index for February 2023 is an increase of 5.1%; 
see attached. Therefore, it is recommended the Board approve a 5% cost of living 
salary increase for staff, effective July 1, 2023. 

Page 45 of 60



4/11/23, 3:03 PM Consumer Price Index, Los Angeles area — February 2023 : Western Information Office : U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_losangeles.htm

Western Information Office

News Release Information
23-511-SAN
Tuesday, March 14, 2023

Contacts
Technical information:
(415) 625-2270
BLSinfoSF@bls.gov
www.bls.gov/regions/west

Media contact:
(415) 625-2270

Related Links
CPI historical databases

Bureau of Labor Statistics Geographic Information Western News Release

Consumer Price Index, Los Angeles area — February 2023
Area prices were down 0.3 percent over the past month, up 5.1 percent from a year ago

Prices in the Los Angeles area, as measured by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U), declined 0.3 percent
in February, the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics reported today. (See table A.) Regional Commissioner Chris Rosenlund noted that
the February decrease was influenced by lower prices for natural gas service. (Data in this report are not seasonally adjusted.
Accordingly, month-to-month changes may reflect seasonal influences.)

Over the last 12 months, the CPI-U advanced 5.1 percent. (See chart 1 and table A.) Food prices increased 7.8 percent. Energy
prices rose 6.4 percent, largely the result of an increase in the price of natural gas service. The index for all items less food and
energy increased 4.5 percent over the year. (See table 1.)

View Chart Data
Food
Food prices increased 0.7 percent for the month of February. (See table 1.) Prices for food at home increased 0.7 percent, with higher prices in five of the six grocery categories.
Prices for food away from home increased 0.6 percent for the same period.

Over the year, food prices increased 7.8 percent. Prices for food at home rose 8.7 percent since a year ago. Price increases across food at home expenditure categories ranged
from 2.6 percent for fruits and vegetables to 15.5 percent for cereals and bakery products. Prices for food away from home advanced 6.7 percent.

Energy
The energy index fell 9.8 percent over the month. The decrease was mainly due to lower prices for natural gas service (-51.9 percent). Prices for gasoline increased 4.8 percent
for the same period.

Energy prices rose 6.4 percent over the year, largely due to higher prices for natural gas service (35.3 percent). Prices for gasoline fell 0.9 percent during the past year.

All items less food and energy
The index for all items less food and energy advanced 0.4 percent in February. Higher prices for household furnishings and operations (2.2 percent) and apparel (2.0 percent)
were partially offset by lower prices for used cars and trucks (-1.1 percent) and medical care (-0.4 percent).

Over the year, the index for all items less food and energy increased 4.5 percent. Components contributing to the increase included shelter (5.2 percent) and medical care (3.6
percent). Partly offsetting the increases were price decreases in used cars and trucks (-11.9 percent) and household furnishings and operations (-0.8 percent).

Table A. Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim, CA, CPI-U 1-month and 12-month percent changes, all items index, not seasonally adjusted

Month

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

1-month 12-month 1-month 12-month 1-month 12-month 1-month 12-month 1-month 12-month

January 0.7 3.2 0.8 3.1 0.2 0.9 1.1 7.5 1.9 5.8

February 0.1 2.5 0.3 3.4 0.4 1.0 0.3 7.4 -0.3 5.1

March 0.6 2.7 0.7 1.9 0.5 2.2 1.5 8.5

April 1.0 3.3 -0.3 0.7 1.1 3.6 0.5 7.9

U.S. BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS

Search Western Region Go

ERRATA Index and average price data for electricity in Los Angeles for May through November 2022 were incorrectly published in the
database. The error also includes related aggregate data within Los Angeles and several related areas. A list of affected series and
the corrected indexes and average price values is available at https://www.bls.gov/bls/errata/data-series-affected-by-consumer-price-

index-data-suppression-for-utilities-and-related-series-in-2022.htm. 

Corrections to be made on 3/30/23.

Western Home Western Geography Western Subjects Western Archives Contact Western

Page 46 of 60

mailto:BLSinfoSF@bls.gov
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west
https://www.bls.gov/cpi/data.htm
https://www.bls.gov/
https://www.bls.gov/regions/home.htm
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/home.htm
javascript:void(0);
https://www.bls.gov/
https://www.bls.gov/bls/errata/data-series-affected-by-consumer-price-index-data-suppression-for-utilities-and-related-series-in-2022.htm
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/
javascript:
javascript:
javascript:
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/contact.htm


4/11/23, 3:03 PM Consumer Price Index, Los Angeles area — February 2023 : Western Information Office : U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_losangeles.htm

Month

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

1-month 12-month 1-month 12-month 1-month 12-month 1-month 12-month 1-month 12-month

May 0.2 3.1 0.4 0.9 0.6 3.9 0.8 8.0

June 0.0 3.3 0.5 1.4 0.6 4.0 1.1 8.6

July 0.1 3.3 0.6 1.9 0.6 3.9 -0.2 7.7

August 0.0 3.0 0.1 2.0 0.2 4.0 0.1 7.6

September 0.5 3.0 -0.3 1.2 0.3 4.6 0.5 7.8

October 0.7 3.2 0.2 0.7 0.9 5.4 0.6 7.5

November -0.3 3.2 0.1 1.0 0.6 6.0 -0.8 6.0

December -0.6 3.0 -0.2 1.5 0.4 6.6 -0.6 4.9

The March 2023 Consumer Price Index for the Los Angeles area is scheduled to be released on April 12, 2023.

Technical Note
The Consumer Price Index (CPI) is a measures of the average change in prices over time in a fixed market basket of goods and services. The Bureau of Labor Statistics
publishes CPIs for two population groups: (1) a CPI for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) which covers approximately 93 percent of the total U.S. population and (2) a CPI for Urban
Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W) which covers approximately 29 percent of the total U.S. population. The CPI-U includes, in addition to wage earners and clerical
workers, groups such as professional, managerial, and technical workers, the self-employed, short-term workers, the unemployed, and retirees and others not in the labor force.

The CPI is based on prices of food, clothing, shelter, and fuels, transportation fares, charges for doctors' and dentists' services, drugs, and the other goods and services that
people buy for day-to-day living. Each month, prices are collected in 75 urban areas across the country from about 6,000 housing units and approximately 22,000 retail
establishments—department stores, supermarkets, hospitals, filling stations, and other types of stores and service establishments. All taxes directly associated with the purchase
and use of items are included in the index.

The index measures price changes from a designated reference date; for most of the CPI-U the reference base is 1982-84 equals 100. An increase of 7 percent from the
reference base, for example, is shown as 107.000.  Alternatively, that relationship can also be expressed as the price of a base period market basket of goods and services rising
from $100 to $107. For further details see the CPI home page on the Internet at www.bls.gov/cpi and the CPI section of the BLS Handbook of Methods available on the internet
at www.bls.gov/opub/hom/cpi/.

In calculating the index, price changes for the various items in each location are averaged together with weights that represent their importance in the spending of the
appropriate population group. Local data are then combined to obtain a U.S. city average. Because the sample size of a local area is smaller, the local area index is subject to
substantially more sampling and other measurement error than the national index. In addition, local indexes are not adjusted for seasonal influences. As a result, local area
indexes show greater volatility than the national index, although their long-term trends are quite similar. NOTE: Area indexes do not measure differences in the level of
prices between cities; they only measure the average change in prices for each area since the base period.

The Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim, CA metropolitan area includes Los Angeles and Orange Counties in California.

Information in this release will be made available to sensory impaired individuals upon request. Voice phone: 202-691-5200; Telecommunications Relay Service: 7-1-1.

Table 1. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U): Indexes and percent changes for selected periods

Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim (1982-84=100 unless otherwise noted)

Item and Group

Indexes Percent change from-

Historical
data

Dec.
2022

Jan.
2023

Feb.
2023

Feb.
2022

Dec.
2022

Jan.
2023

Expenditure category

All items 312.601 318.591 317.571 5.1 1.6 -0.3

All items (1967=100) 923.563 941.261 938.247 - - -

Food and beverages 321.802 324.189 326.720 7.6 1.5 0.8

Food 323.511 326.080 328.229 7.8 1.5 0.7

Food at home 311.773 314.820 317.053 8.7 1.7 0.7

Cereals and bakery products 343.326 348.891 349.789 15.5 1.9 0.3

Meats, poultry, fish, and eggs 334.607 339.692 339.260 4.2 1.4 -0.1

Dairy and related products 304.564 305.558 307.305 11.4 0.9 0.6

Fruits and vegetables 415.162 414.795 415.390 2.6 0.1 0.1

Nonalcoholic beverages and beverage materials(1) 296.778 298.893 301.326 6.6 1.5 0.8

Other food at home 246.420 249.856 255.402 14.7 3.6 2.2

Food away from home 330.302 331.980 333.904 6.7 1.1 0.6

Footnotes
(1) Indexes on a December 1977=100 base.
(2) This index series was calculated using a Laspeyres estimator. All other item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means estimator.
(3) Indexes on a December 1982=100 base.
(4) Special index based on a substantially smaller sample.
(5) Indexes on a December 1993=100 base.
(6) Indexes on a December 1997=100 base.

- Data not available
NOTE: Index applies to a month as a whole, not to any specific date.

Page 47 of 60

https://www.bls.gov/cpi
https://www.bls.gov/opub/hom/cpi
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASA0?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49AAA0?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAF?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAF1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAF11?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAF111?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAF112?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASEFJ?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAF113?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAF114?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAF115?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASEFV?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true


4/11/23, 3:03 PM Consumer Price Index, Los Angeles area — February 2023 : Western Information Office : U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_losangeles.htm

Item and Group

Indexes Percent change from-

Historical
data

Dec.
2022

Jan.
2023

Feb.
2023

Feb.
2022

Dec.
2022

Jan.
2023

Alcoholic beverages 277.343 277.175 284.531 3.3 2.6 2.7

Housing 357.653 367.057 361.568 5.3 1.1 -1.5

Shelter 407.918 409.720 410.139 5.2 0.5 0.1

Rent of primary residence(2) 431.608 433.967 434.905 5.1 0.8 0.2

Owners' equiv. rent of residences(2)(3) 423.324 424.353 424.743 5.2 0.3 0.1

Owners' equiv. rent of primary residence(1)(2) 423.299 424.329 424.718 5.2 0.3 0.1

Fuels and utilities 455.633 580.765 477.230 13.9 4.7 -17.8

Household energy - - - - - -

Energy services(2) - - - - - -

Electricity(2) - - - - - -

Utility (piped) gas service(2) 374.276 839.299 403.709 35.3 7.9 -51.9

Household furnishings and operations 129.346 130.530 133.353 -0.8 3.1 2.2

Apparel 115.256 118.080 120.473 2.2 4.5 2.0

Transportation 252.037 255.814 259.474 3.6 3.0 1.4

Private transportation 253.882 256.904 260.013 2.3 2.4 1.2

New and used motor vehicles(4) 109.260 111.654 111.731 3.4 2.3 0.1

New vehicles(1) 193.987 194.759 195.514 1.4 0.8 0.4

Used cars and trucks(1) 360.256 354.971 350.910 -11.9 -2.6 -1.1

Motor fuel 345.571 341.285 357.624 -0.5 3.5 4.8

Gasoline (all types) 336.196 332.026 348.035 -0.9 3.5 4.8

Gasoline, unleaded regular(4) 336.482 332.348 348.609 -1.0 3.6 4.9

Gasoline, unleaded midgrade(4)(5) 322.786 318.398 333.499 -0.6 3.3 4.7

Gasoline, unleaded premium(4) 323.438 319.306 333.803 -0.5 3.2 4.5

Medical care 548.472 558.533 556.341 3.6 1.4 -0.4

Recreation(6) 120.139 120.785 121.814 5.4 1.4 0.9

Education and communication(6) 155.475 155.327 155.873 2.5 0.3 0.4

Tuition, other school fees, and child care(1) 2,183.845 2,178.794 2,179.863 4.8 -0.2 0.0

Other goods and services 484.586 502.040 500.949 6.3 3.4 -0.2

Commodity and service group

All items 312.601 318.591 317.571 5.1 1.6 -0.3

Commodities 212.695 213.853 215.603 2.9 1.4 0.8

Commodities less food & beverages 157.607 158.273 159.604 -0.5 1.3 0.8

Nondurables less food & beverages 216.237 218.373 222.267 1.9 2.8 1.8

Durables 101.657 101.579 101.582 -2.9 -0.1 0.0

Services 400.839 411.538 407.703 6.2 1.7 -0.9

Special aggregate indexes

All items less medical care 302.215 308.024 307.054 5.2 1.6 -0.3

All items less shelter 270.398 278.306 276.631 5.1 2.3 -0.6

Commodities less food 162.816 163.474 164.958 -0.4 1.3 0.9

Nondurables 270.350 272.642 275.948 5.2 2.1 1.2

Nondurables less food 222.808 224.834 228.989 2.0 2.8 1.8

Services less rent of shelter(3) 401.295 426.829 415.924 8.0 3.6 -2.6

Services less medical care services 386.537 397.345 393.426 6.5 1.8 -1.0

Energy 374.597 432.933 390.509 6.4 4.2 -9.8

All items less energy 310.916 314.015 315.304 5.0 1.4 0.4

All items less food and energy 308.824 312.000 313.159 4.5 1.4 0.4

Footnotes
(1) Indexes on a December 1977=100 base.
(2) This index series was calculated using a Laspeyres estimator. All other item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means estimator.
(3) Indexes on a December 1982=100 base.
(4) Special index based on a substantially smaller sample.
(5) Indexes on a December 1993=100 base.
(6) Indexes on a December 1997=100 base.

- Data not available
NOTE: Index applies to a month as a whole, not to any specific date.

Page 48 of 60

https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAF116?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAH?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAH1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASEHA?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASEHC?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASEHC01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAH2?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAH21?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASEHF?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASEHF01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASEHF02?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAH3?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAA?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAT?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAT1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASETA?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASETA01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASETA02?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASETB?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASETB01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASS47014?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASS47015?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASS47016?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAM?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAR?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAE?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASEEB?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAG?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASA0?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAC?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASACL11?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASANL11?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAD?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAS?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASA0L5?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASA0L2?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASACL1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASAN?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASANL1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASASL2RS?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASASL5?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASA0E?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASA0LE?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49ASA0L1E?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true


4/11/23, 3:03 PM Consumer Price Index, Los Angeles area — February 2023 : Western Information Office : U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_losangeles.htm

Last Modified Date: Tuesday, March 14, 2023

U.S. BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS Western Information Office  Attn: EA & I, 90 Seventh Street  Suite 14-100  San Francisco, CA
94103-6715

Telephone:1-415-625-2270 www.bls.gov/regions/west  Contact Western Region

Page 49 of 60

tel:14156252270
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/home.htm
https://data.bls.gov/forms/ro9.htm?/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_losangeles.htm


202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

Compensatory Time Policy 

Compensatory time off may be approved in lieu of overtime pay for irregular or occasional 
overtime work when the employee requests CTO in writing in lieu of overtime compensation 
and the employee is regularly scheduled to work no fewer than 40 hours in a workweek. 

Non-Exempt Employees may accrue up to 40 hrs of compensatory time in one calendar year. 
Compensatory time may not be transferred from one calendar year to the next. For example, if 
accrued compensatory time off is not used before the 24th pay period time limit, the time shall 
be converted back to OT, and the employee must be paid for the earned compensatory time off 
at the overtime rate in effect when earned. 

Exempt Employees may accrue compensatory time under special circumstances upon the 
MOWD Board of Directors' approval. An employee may accrue up to 240 hours of CTO. We will 
pay overtime to employees who accrue more than 240 hours for any additional overtime work. 

At the employee’s request, we will pay overtime in cash in lieu of earned CTO for at least two 
pay periods. 

We will permit employees to use the accrued time within a reasonable period after making the 
request, if such use does not unduly disrupt our operations. 

Compensatory time will be recorded on the employee time sheets and in the electronic MOWD 
payroll system. 

Compensatory Time Calculation: 1 hr. OT = 1.5 hr. Compensatory Time 

Page 50 of 60

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

Temporary Staffing – Utility Worker Helper 
Summary: 
Meiners Oaks Water District has been challanged to maintain consistant staffing in the 
field. Having an extra set of hands would help MOWD keep up the daily maintenance 
and duties throughout the District. An additional part-time (36 hrs per week) employee 
will allow for safer working conditions during certain tasks throughout the District, such 
as traffic control, lifting heavy items, and working in remote locations. Along with 
working towards the goal of having another licensed operator on staff in the future.  
During the DDW 2021 Sanitary Survey, it was the recommendation of our state 
regulator to consider additional field staffing.  

“DDW recommends that MOWD evaluate and record the number and levels of staffing 
required for the continued and reliable operation of its water system in its Operations, 
Maintenance, and Monitoring Plan or other appropriate document, and ensure that it 
consistently meets those needs.” 

Estimated Salary Expense: up to $40,000 (No medical, dental, vision or retirement 
benefits will be offered) 

Recommendation: 
The GM recommends adding one Temporary Water Utility Worker Helper position to 
the MOWD team. The existing job description is included in this board report. This 
position will be good through November 30, 2023. At that time, the District can 
reassess the need to continue the position or transition it to a permanent helper 
position.   
Transfer $40,000 budget funds from the Well 8 Nitrate/Blending budget of $60,000 to 
salaries, payroll tax, liability insurance and workers compensation, to cover the 
temporary position.  

Temporary Water Utility Worker Helper - Non-Exempt (Part Time) 

Job Expires November 30, 2023 

Salary $16 - 22 hr. 

Page 51 of 60

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


Meiners Oaks Water District 
Temporary Water Utility Worker Helper 

Job Expires ___________________ 
Salary $ 16 - 22 hr.  

Non-Exempt (Part Time) 

1. General Job Description
Works under direct supervision, performs a variety of semi-skilled 
tasks related to the maintenance, repair and upkeep of a domestic 
water system; and related duties as assigned. 

2. Qualifications/Requirements
• Must have a valid class “C” California driver’s license.
• Must have a High School Diploma or GED.
• Must be able to pass a fitness for duty physical exam and pre-

employment drug test.

3. Basic Work Hours
• Normal work hours are

Monday - Thursday 8 AM to 5 PM.
Friday 8 AM -12 PM

• Compensation will be made at an hourly rate.

4. Essential Job Duties
The Temporary Water Utility Worker Helper will perform the following 
tasks under direct or limited supervision:   

• Perform work in maintenance, construction and repair of Water
District facilities as assigned

• Assist Water Utility Workers in repairs of any water leaks in the
water district distribution system.

• Reading of water meters
• Weed abatement using weed whips and applying weed control

chemicals around district facilities.
• Fire hydrant maintenance; Cleaning, painting, exercising, and

applying lubrication to threads and steams as needed
• Valve exercising
• Observing treatment processes and assisting in basic treatment

plant maintenance and calibration

Page 52 of 60



• Other duties may apply as directed

This is a part time, entry level position. General understanding of 
construction, equipment maintenance and mechanical ability preferred. 

5. Physical Demand, Work Environmental or Elements

The physical demands described here are representative of those that
must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential
functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
Must possess mobility to work in the field, in District buildings and
facilities; strength, stamina, and mobility to perform light to medium
physical work, to work in confined spaces, around machines, to walk on
uneven terrain, and to climb and descend ladders. Operate varied hand
and power tools and construction equipment. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, depth
perception and color vision. Ability to communicate in person and over
the telephone or radio. The job involves fieldwork requiring frequent
walking in operational areas to identify problems or hazards. The
employee is required to have manual dexterity sufficient to operate a
District vehicle, computers and standard office machines such as fax,
calculator, telephone, copiers, etc. Positions in this classification bend,
stoop, kneel, reach and climb to perform work and inspect work sites.
Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull
materials and objects weighing up to 150 pounds.

Employees work indoors and outdoors and may be exposed to cold and
hot temperatures, inclement weather conditions, loud noise levels,
vibrations, confining workspaces, chemicals, mechanical and electrical
hazards, and hazardous physical substances and fumes. Employees
may interact with emotionally distraught public and private
representatives, staff, and contractors in interpreting and enforcing
district policies and procedures.

__________________________ 
Employee Signature Date 

Page 53 of 60



March 2023 

1 

District Summary/Update 

• Casitas Lake Level:  71%  +55.9’ January 1st – 4/12/23

• Wells: MOWD is 100% on Casitas as of 3/18/2023 due to a slide on Hwy 33

• Income Survey: Waiting on a final report from Kennedy Communications

• Rain Fall Totals (Season):   Casitas Dam  --. --”       
    Matilija Dam     63.33” 

M.O. Fire Station      41.38”
 Stewart Canyon   --. --”         
 Nordhoff Ridge      70.37” 

• GIS Mapping: GIS mapping of the district has been Completed. Staff is currently attaching info to each asset

• Valve Replacement: Budget $50,000; 3 locations proposed, out for bid

• Treatment Plant Project: MKN & Associates are working towards final design, waiting on revisions from sub-consultants

• Battery Back-Up Power: Ventura Energy, Clara Nagy McBane, need to schedule a committee meeting to review contract

• Well Siting Study: Curtis Hopkins; In review

• Hwy 33 Slide: Core Soil Samples of the slide have been taken and in review prior to engineering

• Staff: Levi Maxwell will be on Military leave from April 24, 2023 through July 25, 2023
     Jeffery Groves Water Utility Worker I, Start of employment with MOWD April 3,2023 

Page 54 of 60



March 2023 

2 

Current Well Levels and Specific Capacity 

WELL #1 JAN 
23’ 

FEB 
23’

MAR 
23’

APR 
23’

MAY 
23’

JUN 
23’

JUL 
23’

AUG 
23’

SEP 
23’

OCT 
23’

NOV 
23’

DEC 
23’

STATIC (ft) 14.53’ 19.3’ 15.52’ 18.4 
RUNNING (ft) OFF 21.9’ OFF OFF 

DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 2.6’ OFF OFF 
Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 299 OFF OFF 

Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 115 OFF OFF 

WELL #2 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 16.36’ 20’ 16.86’ 19.3 

RUNNING (ft) OFF 25’ OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 5’ OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 220 OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 44 OFF OFF 

WELL #4a JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 23.6’ 26.6’ 22.9’ 24.8 

RUNNING (ft) OFF 46.2’ OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 1.7’ OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 350 OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 18.6 OFF OFF 

WELL #7 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 31.10’ 33.7’ 30.5’ 32.1 

RUNNING (ft) OFF 35.7’ OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 1.7’ OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 350 OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 176 OFF OFF 

WELL #8 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 33’ OFF OFF OFF 

RUNNING (ft) OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Page 55 of 60



March 2023 

3 

Water Pumped, Sold, Purchased & Water Sales 
MONTH PUMPED (AF) SOLD (AF) PURCHASED (AF) WATER SALES 

($) 
2023 JAN 1.12 24.10 24.10 $58,971.14 

FEB 28.40 26.09 0 $44,193.07 
MAR 13.58 22.72 10.27 $51,820.20 
APR 
MAY 
JUN 
JUL 

AUG 
SEP 
OCT 
NOV 
DEC 

YTD 2023 43.10 72.91 34.37 $154,984.41 
TOTAL 2022 451.43 615.38 216.43 $823,145.74 
TOTAL 2021 411.94 640.95 266.57 $648,269.32 
TOTAL 2020 485.71 635.47 197.26 $657,912.06 

Reserve Funds 
* Balance at the County of Ventura  $ 1,430,010.07 

Total Taxes      $40.26 

Total Interest from reserve account#             $ 0.00 

Fiscal Year Total Revenues 
July 1st – March 31st             2022     $1,445,210.68 

July 1st – March 31st             2023   $1,674,280.96 

Page 56 of 60



March 2023 

4 

Bank Balances 
* LAIF Balance          $ 232,799.27 
Transferred from L.A.I.F. to General       $ 0.00 
(#) Quarterly Interest from LAIF  $0.00 

* Money Market (Mechanics Bank)   $ 7,624.77 

Amount Transferred to Mechanics from County this month 
Amount Transferred to General Fund from Money Market        $ 0.00 
Monthly Interest received from Money Market     $ .13 

General Fund Balance  $ 112,192.83 

Trust Fund Balance    $ 7,897.79 

* Capital Improvement Fund    $ 13,774.116 

 (#) Quarterly Interest from Capital Account                $ .12 

 Total Interest accrued  $ 0.25 

Page 57 of 60



March 2023 

5 

Capital Improvement Projects for 2022-2023 
Budgeted Capital Funds $ 653,500 FY 2022-2023 

1. Well #8 Nitrate Removal/Blending (Tabled)
2. Valve Replacement
3. Meiners Rd. Tank/Zone (Pending)
4. Treatment Plant 100% Design (In-Progress)
5. GIS Equipment & Software (Complete, Data entry in progress)
6. Air Compressor for Crew Truck
7. Appropriations for Contingencies (In-Progress)

Page 58 of 60



Board Secretary Report – April 2023 

 Board Secretary Report 

April 2023 

Administrative 

• Income Survey – results pending submission to State agencies.
• Annual Conflict of Interest Form 700s were all filed by April 3 deadline.
• Bi-Annual Harassment & Ethics Training – pending for 2 Directors.
• SWRCB 2022 Annual Water Use Report – submitted January 2023
• SWRCB eAR 2022 – in progress, released March 13, 2023 due by May 13, 2023
• New SWRCB Drought & Conservation Reporting – in progress due quarterly, initial Jan – Mar

2023 reporting due by April 30, 2023.
• Annual Consumer Confidence Report – in progress, pending data report from FGL.

Financial (any items not covered in separate Financials Report)

a) Financial Audit FY 21-22 presentation planned for May 2023. – Fanning & Karrh, CPA.
b) Accounts Receivable –SB 998 timeline for disconnects for non-payment (>$200 @ 60 days) is

in effect. Late fees and District past-due processes resumed as of March 26, 2022. As of
February 16, 2023, one account has been shut off for non-payment, is vacant, and the phone is
no longer in service; mailed notices and door hangers have been unsuccessful ($449.20).

Billing/Customer Service 

Month #Total 
Service 
Orders 

# Account 
Owner 

Changes 

Monthly 
Customer Bill 

Total 

Over-
Allocation 

 $ (drought) 

Other 
Conservation 

Penalties 
Jan 22 110 5 $110,228.55 $882.00 $0 
Feb 22 72 10 $124,078.38 $4,993.00 $0 
Mar 22 80 7 $123,073.26 $5,308.00 $0 
Apr 22 72 14 $113,351.51 $2,131.00 $0 

May 22 101 6 $129,660.69 $2,294.00 $0 
Jun 22 68 7 $133,628.56 $4,311.00 $0 
Jul 22 110 6 $142,448.60 $4,095.00 $100 

Aug 22 109 8 $195,707.04 $5,236.00 $0 
Sep 22 81 6 $211,050.86 $28,070.00 $0 
Oct 22 81 6 $214,082.52 $35,420.00 $0 
Nov 22 78 5 $174,076.68 $19,655.00 $0 
Dec 22 119 5 $138,726.38 $7,935.00 $0 
Jan 23 134 4 $122,495.23 $6,800.00 $0 
Feb 23 81 3 $121,590.44 $7,940.00 $0 
Mar 23 64 9 $113,382.75 $6,330.00 $0 

• Sep – Nov 22 Over-allocation fees were elevated due to several customer leaks, who subsequently
received DSUR relief.

Page 59 of 60



Board Secretary Report – April 2023 

• Jan 23 Service Orders: 10 leak checks and 105 re-reads during meter reading for abnormal
consumption.

Board of Directors 

 Board Member Position Term Ends Term Type 
Michel Etchart President 2026 Long Term (Re-elected 2022) 

Christian Oakland Vice President 2024 Long Term (Elected 2020) 
James Kentosh Director 2026 Long Term (Re-elected 2022) 
Christy Cooper Director 2024 Short-Term Re-elect for 2 yr 

term to 2024 
Joe Pangea Director 2026 Long Term (Elected 2022) 

Projects 

a) Policy & Procedure, Resolution & Ordinance web posting – in progress.
• Financial Audit recommended policies and procedures – ad hoc committee

b) Employee Handbook – Draft in process.
c) Staff evaluation of multimedia and document scanning, archiving, and search/edit software – in

progress.
d) Phone & Internet migration from AT&T to Mitec Solutions – in progress.

Recommended Actions:  Receive an update from the Board Secretary concerning miscellaneous matters 
and District correspondence. Provide feedback to staff. 

Attachments:  None. 

Page 60 of 60


	Item 1 MOWD Regular Board Agenda 4-18-2023
	Item 3 3-21-2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Item 6a Income 032023
	Item 6b AP Report 031623-041523
	Item 6c Expenditures 032023
	Item 6d Board Financial Graphs
	Income & Expense Graphs

	Item 7a1 SCADA  Auto Dialer Upgrade Staff Report
	Item 7a2 Meiners Oaks  Water auto dialer System
	Item 7b Draft Stage 1 Conditions Resolution 20230516
	Item 7c Financial Audit Reports - Draft
	Item 7d1 COLA Request
	Item 7d2 Consumer Price Index, Los Angeles area — February 2023 _ Western Information Office _ U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics
	Item 7f Compensatory Time DRAFT Policy
	Item 7g1 Temporary Help 2023 -JM2
	Item 7g2 Job Description Temp. Helper
	Works under direct supervision, performs a variety of semi-skilled tasks related to the maintenance, repair and upkeep of a domestic water system; and related duties as assigned.

	Item 8 March 2023 G.M. Report
	Item 9 Board Secretary Report April 2023



